
PLANNING BOARD 

TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire 

 

Minutes of June 2, 2011 

 

Members Present: Chairman Leandra MacDonald, Bill Groff, Tom Weeks, and Rick Monahon. 

 

Also Present:  Carol Ogilvie, Director Office of Community Development, Laura Norton, OCD 

Administrative Assistant; Francie Von Mertens, Conservation Commission; and Rod Christy from 

the public.   

 

The Peterborough Planning Board held a Public Hearing on Thursday, June 2, 2011 in the Kitchen 

Meeting Room of the Town House. The purpose of the hearing was to discuss the proposed 

amendment to the Site Plan Review Regulations, the effect of which would be to institute a 

conditional use permit process through the Planning Board for streets and driveways and for 

additions or expansions to multi-family or non-residential uses within the Wetland Protection 

Overlay District; establish a process for applications for a conditional use permit for these uses 

within the District; provide performance standards for the mitigation of any negative impacts on 

wetlands; and allow for the monumentation of the edge of the wetland buffer for projects being 

approved by the conditional use permit process. The meeting was called to order at 5:04 p.m.  

 

Chair MacDonald appointed Mr. Groff to sit and welcomed everyone and noted “you all have a 

copy of the changes; this is the implementation step in the adoption of the new ordinance” 

adding “the changes are largely in the driveway crossings.” Ms. Ogilvie noted a change §233-53 

(Wetland Monumentation) explaining “this has been rewritten to try to further clarify where the 

actual delineation would take place.” She added “the paragraph is new and has a 200 foot 

reference in it that we did not have before.” Chair MacDonald noted an information brochure 

that Ms. Ogilvie had been working on. Ms. Ogilvie noted the brochure was “still a work in 

process” but was very close to being completed. Chair MacDonald asked if any of the members 

had any other questions (there were none) so she opened the hearing to the public. 

 

Francie Von Mertens introduced herself and said she was curious about §233-51 C (1) which 

stated a site plan is prepared by a person qualified to assess the functions and values of wetlands. 

She asked “who is that person?” adding “who is qualified?” Both Chair MacDonald and Ms. 

Ogilvie noted the qualifications of that individual were defined in another section. Mr. Monahon 

noted state qualifications also count noting “soil scientists and some engineers are qualified to 

assess.” 

 

Ms. Von Mertens noted “the assessment of functions and values of a wetland is different than 

someone who goes out with an auger” adding “we threw out the functions and value with the 

changes. Now is it a 50-foot buffer. That is what it is.” A brief discussion about the qualification 

process followed with Mr. Monahon concluding “it is either a wetland or it is not. The functions 

and values is a number system used in the fine tuning of a wetland evaluation but they are not 

required.” “A wetland is a wetland is a wetland” he said.   

 



Planning Board Minutes                                   June 2, 2011                                      Page 2 of 3 

Mr. Weeks noted §233-52 (Performance Standards) and noted the regulation stated “applications 

for a Conditional Use Permit shall be prepared by a New Hampshire certified wetland scientist or 

other qualified person or persons. “This is confusing” interjected Ms. Von Mertens. A brief 

discussion about qualifications, best use of the land and access considerations as well as the role 

of the Conservation Commission followed.  Mr. Weeks clarified that the person who prepares the 

plan may not necessarily be the person who delineates the wetland. 

 

The members then discussed monumentation and where it would be appropriate. Ms. Von 

Mertens noted the importance of public education of the process. Mr. Monahon noted there could 

be limits to monumenting large wetland areas “because the impact area of concern may only be 

100 feet.” The members also discussed knowledge value of monumentation on neighboring 

property wetlands as well a record keeping system of the monumentation tags. Mr. Monahon 

concluded by noting “it will be interesting to see the flow of this as an administrative piece of 

work for this Board.” Chair MacDonald interjected “it is not a big change; it is a new procedure 

really.” The members then briefly discussed what the monumentation tags would look like with 

Ms. Von Mertens. Mr. Weeks asked what the tags would be made of to which Ms. Von Mertens 

replied “plastic.” He also asked about cost and who would supply the tags. “These questions will 

come up” he said. Ms. Von Mertens replied the tags would be provided through the Office of 

Community Development at no cost to the property owner. The members also discussed 

placement of the tags (tree s, posts etc.) and the longevity of the tags with Ms. Von Mertens 

reviewing several ideas. Chair MacDonald noted “nothing will last forever.” Ms. Von Mertens 

agreed adding “it has been a challenge.” 

 

Ms. Ogilvie told the members the educational brochure would be completed and sent out to them 

via e-mail for review “early next week.” 

 

The Public Hearing closed at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Mr. Monahon gave a brief review of the work force housing conference he had attended the 

previous weekend adding “Carol did a wonderful job as both a speaker and a facilitator.” The 

members briefly discussed work force housing and scheduling Catherine Owen Koning to come 

and speak about wetland values. Ms. Von Mertens noted “she has a great Power Point 

presentation; it would be a great educational experience for the Planning Board.” One member 

noted “we should put the push on to get everyone here for that” and they discussed inviting the 

public, the ZBA, the Board of Selectmen and others. Chair MacDonald noted “we should do it 

fairly soon” with Mr. Monahon noting he thought it better to wait and “push it into September 

and out of summer.” 

 

When Mr. Weeks was asked about how he felt about Ms. Koning and the educational push he 

replied “I think it should have been done it before the vote not after.” Several of the members 

noted they had previously arranged a Koning presentation and the turnout was very poor. Mr. 

Weeks asked “and what kind of turnout will you get after the fact?” The members did agree that 

a visit from Ms. Koning would be extremely welcome with one member noting “I’d be anxious 

to see what she can provide us to help us though applications.” Chair MacDonald added “I think 

people forget, I went to her presentation and I would like to hear it again.” 

 



Planning Board Minutes                                   June 2, 2011                                      Page 3 of 3 

Chair MacDonald then announced she would entertain a motion to adopt the regulations as 

written. Said motion was made/seconded (Monahon/Groff) with all in favor.  

 

Chair MacDonald then reviewed a list of housekeeping items she had created that included a 

review of the Master Plan, Work Force Housing and other things that may come into or go out of 

their purview; “things change” she said. She added “we planned it but never had the 

neighborhood meeting about re-zoning in the Monadnock Community Healthcare District 

(MCH). She also asked “how is West Peterborough functioning? Do we have anything to learn 

about that or from that?” Chair MacDonald also mentioned their desire to review the present 

water/sewer maps and discuss the best areas to extend these systems. “We need to be aware of 

these things” she said.  

 

Mr. Weeks noted a potential problem with a farmer’s market at the MCH parking lot (i.e. retail 

not being permitted in the Monadnock Community Healthcare District) and a brief discussion 

about commercial versus non-commercial agriculture followed. 

 

Mr. Monahon once again complimented Ms. Ogilvie on her presentation and participation in the 

Work Force Housing Summit. He mentioned Ms. Ogilvie had used the Evan’s Flat model to talk 

about how Peterborough had explored work force housing involving town-owned property. He 

added “the most useful thing a community can do is to consider zoning changes as the method of 

achieving their goals.” The discussion about work force housing in the Rural Zone that followed 

included negative factors of greater isolation and transportation needs.  

 

In conclusion Chair MacDonald asked about creating a path on the land behind the Armory 

“instead of leaping the ditch, which people do.” 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

Laura Norton,  

Administrative Assistant 


